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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, and its profits and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial
Statements.

Other Matters:

4. The Scheme of Amalgamation ("the Scheme") for amalgamation of the Company’s wholly owned
Subsidiary viz Westfield Entertainment Private Limited into the Company with effect from the Appointed
Date (October 1, 2021) has been approved by the Regional Director, Western Region, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs vide order dated December 19, 2022. However, the above results are being presented
on a standalone basis without giving effect to the said Scheme, pending the Scheme becoming effective as
per scheme of Amalgamation.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and
~—our Auditor's Report thereon.




Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

6.

8.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs,
profit or loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the IND AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

9.

10.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level or assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible



for explaining our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the 'Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

d.

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the IND AS specified under Section 133
of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as at 31" March 2023 and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company as
on 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date and our report as per Annexure B expressed an unmodified opinion;



with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 40 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses

There were no amount which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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Chartered Accountants
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST PIONEER
PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED, ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,
2023

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date):
i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) There is a regular program of physical verification, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its property, plants & equipment. No material
discrepancies have been noticed in respect of property, plant and equipment physically verified
during the year.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties and/or lease agreements
where immovable properties are taken on lease are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment
(including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical
stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion,
the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company.

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly the provisions of

_ clause 3(iii) of the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.




vi)

vii)

viii)

ix)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, made investments, given guarantee or provided security in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable hence not commented
upon.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the construction of residential and commercial properties and are
of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained.
We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.
(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added
tax, goods and service tax, cesses and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been slight delays in few cases.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us clauses vii (b) of the Companies (Auditors
‘Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.
(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to the bank. The
company does not have dues to financial institution, government or debenture holders as at the
balance sheet date.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company
has used fund raised from its wholly owned subsidiary Westfield Entertainment Pvt Limited (WEPL) on
short term basis aggregating to Rs.63.13 crores for both long-term purposes as well as short-term
purposes. The Scheme of Amalgamation ("the Scheme") for amalgamation of the Company’s wholly
owned Subsidiary viz Westfield Entertainment Private Limited into the Company with effect from the
Appointed Date (October 1, 2021) has been approved by the Regional Director, Western Region,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide order dated December 19, 2022. However, the above results are
being presented on a standalone basis without giving effect to the said Scheme, pending the Scheme
becoming effective as per scheme of Amalgamation.

In the opinion of the company, as per the terms of the scheme, upon completion of the merger the
short term loan of Rs.63.13 crores taken from the subsidiary will get knocked off and on
extinguishment of the said short term loan liability the company will not face any liquidity issues.



x)

xi)

xii)

Xiii)

Xiv)

Xv)

Xvi)

xvii)

xviii)
Xix)

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing,
we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government , during the
year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the

Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc.,
as required by the applicable IND AS.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has incurred not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year the company had incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 2.58 crores.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and



XX)

management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

UDIN: 23130471BGZHBR5226

for NILAY D. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.130392W

ilay D. Shah, Proprietor

Membership No. 130471
Mumbai, May 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST PIONEER
PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,
2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”) as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023, we have audited the internal
financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company's business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR and the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IECOFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
~ audit opinion on the Company'’s IFCoFR.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6.

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCOFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2023 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

UDIN: 23130471BGZHBR5226

for NILAY D. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.130392W

g " \*\

Nilay D. Shah, Proprietor
Membership No. 130471
Mumbai, May 29, 2023



WEST PIONEELR PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2023

(T in Lakhs)
Sr. No. | Particulars As At ARAL
Notes 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 8,902.31 9,468.05
(b} Capital work-in-progress = -
(¢) Right of use assets 3 - 6.51
(d) Other intangible assets 4 9.25 16,50
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 3,289.52 3,289.52
(ii) Others financial assets 6 116.71 108.44
() Deferred tax assets (net) T = =
(g) Other non-current assets 8 408.87 263.13
Total non-current assets 12,726.66 13,152.15
(2) |[Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 29,648.90 28,007.22
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables ] 2,786.96 1,934.84
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 619.69 179.17
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 12 528.64 125.40
(iv) Loans and other financial assets 13 126.96 276.00
(v) Other financial assets 14 16.63 17.07
(€) Other current assets 14a 266.92 261.44
Total current assets 33,994.70 30,891.14
TOTAL ASSETS 46,721.36 44,043.29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |Equity
Equity share capital 5 2,904.93 2,904.93
Other equity 16 6,517.73 5,167.59
Total equity 9,422.66 8,072.52
Liabilities
(2) |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 9.596.10 12,164.16
(ii} Other Financial Liability 18 4,043.51 3,624.73
(b) Provisions 19 3671 34,10
(c) Other non-current liabilities 20 11.43 547
Total non current liabilities 13,687.75 15,828.46
(3) |Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 7,487.49 B8,014.77
(ia) Lease liability - 6.08
(i) Payables 22
- Trade payables
(i) total ollJtslandlng dues of micro 141.83 0
enterprises and small enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and 1,088.97 924.84
small enterprises
- Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro - B
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and - -
small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 182,92 186.19
{b) Other current liabilities 25 14,701.82 10,933.94
(c) Provisions 26 7.92 3.57
Total current liabilities 23,610.95 20,142.31
TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,298.70 35,970.77
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 46,721.36 44,043.29
For Nilay D. Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Np.: 130392W /
¢ M B
NitishMhatr Sunil Trivedi
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No.: 130471 DIN No.082944035 DIN No, 00387797
[lln( Q’VA}M
PO 6/ Qj\q /
6; ng Agrawal Anup Kumar Lath  Radha Gohil
CEO CFD Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date - 29th May 2023 L Date : 29th May 2023



NEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes For the Year Ended 31st | For the Year Ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Revenue from operations 27 9.914.69 231582
Other income 28 144.40 100.31
Total Income 10,059.09 2,416.13
EXPENSES
Construction cost 29 4,029.02 63.96
Employee benefits expense 30 431.13 411.76
Finance costs 31 1,170.49 813.84
Depreciation and amortization expense 32 769.73 828.30
Other expenses 33 2,296.40 1,386.90
Total expenses 8,696.77 3,504.76
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 1,362.32 (1,088.63)
Exceptional items » -
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,362.32 (1,088.63)
Tax expense:
(1)Current tax - -
(2)Deferred tax - -
. |Profit / (Loss) for the year after tax 1,362.32 (1,088.63)
Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (11.69) (0.07)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss =
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss ) )
Total (11.69) (0.07)
| Total Comprehensive Income for the period after tax 1,350.63 (1,088.70)
Earnings per equity share 34
Basic earnings / (loss) per equity share 4.69 (3.76)
Diluted earnings / (loss) per equity share 4.69 (3.76)
Nominal value per equity share 10 10

“or Nilay D. Shah & Associates
“hartered Accountants
CAI Firm Registration No.: 130392W

Stiah
roprietor
~fembership No.. 130471

*lace: Mumbai
Jate : 29th May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited

/
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Director
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g Agrawal

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2023

Sunil Trivedi
Director

DIN No. 00387797

Anup Kumar Lath
CFO

Radha Gohil
Company Secretary




West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March,2023

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 315t March 2022
(% in Lakhs) ( in Lakhs)
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit (Loss) before tax 1,362.32 (1,088.62)
j i fore tax 1o net flows
Depreciation/ amortization T769.73 82830
Profit on sale of fixed assets (4.04) -
Assets written off 1.95 0.03
Provision for doubtful debt/bad debt write off (6.44) 1.99
Sundry balances written back (14.37) {4.01)
Fair valuation of security deposit & lease (10.10) (11,56)
Interest expense 1,170.49 813,84
Tnterest (income) (14.37) (8.27)
Interest received on Income Tax refund (16.77) (33.95)
‘Dperating profit before working capital changes 3,238.40 497.75
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 247.41 398.10
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (B45.68) 488.36
(Increase) in inventories (984.12) (2,045.19)
Decrease in financial assets 151.31 67.07
(Increase)/Decrease in non financial assets (3.56) (32.33)
(Decrease) in financial liabilities 482,70 (433.16)
I in non financial liabiliti 3,899,380 698,86
Cash (used in} / generated from operations 6,186.26 (360.54)
Direct taxes (paid) net of refunds (150.53) 73.89
Net cash flow (used in) generated from operating activities (A) 6,035.73 (286.65)
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 4.04 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including CWIF and capital advances (192.19) (41.60)
Bank deposit {403.24) (10.42)
Interest received 12.22 8.65
Interest received on Income Tax refund 16.77 33.95
Net cash flow {used in) i ing activities (B) (562.40) {9.42)
Cash Nows from nei
P Is from i of prefi share capital - 10,00
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital - 309,98
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - 1,494.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,205 48) (1,244.87)
Redemption of preference share capital (73.76) (479.44)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 362,00 1,654.50
Repayment of short-term borrowings (2,601.68) (887.00)
Interest paid (1,513.89) (973.72)
Net cash Mlow from financing acti {C) (5,032.81) (116.55)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 440.52 (412.62)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 179.17 591,79
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 619.69 179.17
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 6.12 5.66
With banks- on current account 613.57 173.51
With banks — in bank deposit restricted 528.64 125.40
Total cash and bank balance 1,148.33 304.57
Less: Fixed deposits not considered as cash equivalents 528.64 125,40
Cash and cash equivalents in cash Mow statement * 619.69 179.17
* Excluding Fixed deposit not treated as Cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financing Activities (% in Lakhs}
Farticalars Asat Non cash changes As at
31st March 2022 Keshi Flow g 315t March,2023
Long term borrowings (including current maturities of long term debt) 14,379.96 (1,205.48) (2,403.68) 10,770.80
Short term borrowings 5,608.96 (2,239.68) 2.853.51 6312.79
Particulars Asat Non cash changes As at
S1st March 2021 Cash Flow & 2

Long term borrowings (including current maturities of long term debt) 14,130.83 249.13 - 14,379.96
| Short term borrowings 4,877.56 767.50 153.90 5,798.96

Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2.1)
As per our report of even date
For Nilay D. Shah & Assodiates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 130392W

Proprietor
Membership No.- 130471

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2023,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

West Pioneerl‘}pertiﬁ {India) Private Limited

Nitin
Director
DIN MNo.08294405

hatre

d.

Agrawal
CEO

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2023
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Sunil Trivedi
Director
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WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

(A)

(B)

Equity share capital

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2023

As at

J1st March, 2022

No. of shares

Amount (T in Lakhs)

No. of shares

Amount (T in Lakhs)

Equity shares of 10 each issued. subscribed and fully

paid up
Opening 2.90,49,287 2,904.93 2.88,42,637 2,884.26
Add: Issued during the year 12 0.00 2,06,650 20.67
Less: Bought back during the year - = - -
Closing 2,90,49,299 2,904.93 2.90,49,287 2,904.93
Other equity

Reserves and surplus
Particulars Securities Premium Total

Account

(T in Lakhs)

Retained earnings

(X in Lakhs)

(X in Lakhs)

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 21,796.99 (15,454.79) 6,342.20
Additions / (Deductions) for the year 289.31 (1,088.62) (799.31)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - (0.07) (0.07)
Less: utilised towards redemption of Preference shares (375.23) - (375.23)
Total Changes during the year -85.92 (1,088.69) (1,174.61)
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 21,711.07 (16,543.48) 5,167.59
Reserves and surplus
Total

Particulars

Securities Premium
Account

(X in Lakhs)

Retained earnings

( in Lakhs)

(% in Lakhs)

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 21,711.07 (16,543.48) 5,167.59
Additions / (Deductions) for the year - 1,362.32 1,362.32
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - (11.69) (11.69)
Less: utilised towards redemption of Preference shares (0.49) - (0.49)
Total Changes during the year -0.49 1,350.63 1,350.14
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 21,710.58 -15,192.85 6,517.73

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For Nilay D. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 130392W

P
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(a)

(b)

West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Corporate Information

West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited is engaged in construction and management of shopping malls, development and sale of residential property and is developing mixed use property in
India. The Comy is also ged in the business of operating Family Entertainment Centers (Game Zone) under brand name as "Zingeria®. While Westfield Entertainment Private Limited is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, majority of its own equity capital 1s held by Winmore Leasing and Holdings Limited (Holding Company).

Significant accounting policies
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are as under:

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is mitially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on acerual basts, except for certain financial mstruments that are measured at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the ideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique, In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics mto account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for and/or discl purposes in these
financial statements is determined on such a basis.

Classification inta current and non-current:
Assets and linbilities are classified as Current and Non Cument as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria setout in Schedule I11 of the Companies Act 2013. Based on nature of

Use of judgements and estimates:

a

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires mar to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and

Significant management judgements:

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have a significant effect on the financial statements

T Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised only when the Company can measure its progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation, The measurement of progress is estimated by reference to the
stage of the projects determined based on the proportion of costs incurred to date and the total estimated costs to coinplete.

Classification of property:

The Company determines whether a property is classified as building under Property, Plant and Equipment or as mventory:

Building under Property, Plant and Equipment comprises land and buildings that are not occupied for use by, or in the operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but
are held primarily to eam rental income. These buildings are rented to tenants and are not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of business

G

=

(1) Inventory comprises property that 1s held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally these are properties that the Company develops and intends to sell before or on completion of
construction,

I Operating lease contracts — the Company as lessor

The Company has entered into various leases agreements. The Company has determined based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for the leases as operating leases.

Estil and A ti

Classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current
The management classifies the assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories based on the operating cycle of the respective busmess / projects.
11 Impairment of assets:

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amounts of each asset or CGU (in case of non-financial assets) based on expected future cash flows and uses an estimated interest rate
to discount them. Estimation relates to assumptions about future cash flows and the determination of a suitahle discount rate

T Useful lives of depreciable / amortisable assets:
M t reviews its esti of the useful lives of depreciable / amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected usage of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to
technical and economic obsal that may change the usage of certain assets,

IV Inventories:
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value (NRV).

NRYV for completed inventory property is assessed including but not limited to market conditions and prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company based on net amount that
it expects to realise from the sale of inventory in the ordinary course of business.

NRV in respect of inventories under construction is assessed with reference to market prices (reference to the recent selling prices) at the reporting date less estimated costs to complete the
construction, and estimated cost necessary to make the sale. The costs to complete the construction are estimated by management.
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West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

V Defined Benefit Obligation:
The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation aleng with leave salary are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation mvelves making
various assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate, attrition rates and anticipation of future salary increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long.
term nature, a defined benefit obligation 1s highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

V1 Fair value measurements:
Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument / assets, Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this may not
always be available, In that case Management uses the best relevant information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction
at the reporting date

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and initial measurement
Property, plant and equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment losses, if any

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other repair and maintenance costs are recogmised in profit or loss as incurred. Items of stores and spares that meet the definition
of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful lives. In other cases, such items are classified as inventories.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset disposed and are
The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which 15 significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that

De recognition:
PPE are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit 15 expected from their disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset i1s recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of de-recognition,

Property, plant and equipment held for sale 15 valued at lower of their carrying amounts and net realizable values. Any write-down 15 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of lease.

Depreciation 15 calculated on a straight-line basis using useful lives as specified in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, except on below mentioned assets. Useful lives of the following assets are
estimated by the Management on basis of technical evaluation .

Asset type Useful life estimated by the management (years)
Mall fit outs 10

Building 30

Plant & machinery (Gaming equipments) 5

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at ¢ach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate
Assets individually costing less than or equal to ¥ 5,000/~ are fully depreciated in the year of purchase except under special circumstances.

The carrying amount of PPE is reviewed periodically for impairment based on internal / external factors, An impairment loss i5 recognised wherever the carrying amount of assets exceeds its

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, Cost comprises of expenditures incurred in respect of capital projects under development and includes any attributable /
allocable cost and other incidental expenses, Revenues earned, if any, from such capital project before capitalisation are adjusted against the capital work in progress.

Intangible Assets

Recognition and initial measurement
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives. The Company uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed
ten years from the date when the asset is available for use. If persuasive evidence exists to the effect that useful life of an intangible asset exceeds ten years, the Company amortizes the intangible
asset over the best estimate of its useful life. Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. All other intangible
assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the i ible asset may be impaired,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

[Asset type | Useful life

[c software | & years

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If there is any indication of impairment based on mternal/external factors, an impairment loss 15 recogmzed wherever the

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value 1n use. Recoverable amount 1s determined for an mdividual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely mdependent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and 1s written down to its recoverable amount,
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After impairment, depreciation 1s provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaiming useful life.

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date as to whether there 15 any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss 1s reversed only if there has been a change in the assumplions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recogmised for the asset in prior years.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the pr ption that the tr ion to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

- In the principal market for the asset or hability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable mputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market 1s determined using market approach and valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and
rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates, If significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2,

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
If ane or more of the significant inputs 1s not based on observable market data, the fair value is determined using generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the

most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparty,

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the sut of the arr at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contamns, a lease if fulfilment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. Lease
arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are recognised as operating lease. The Company has only operating lease and accounts
the same as follows:

Where the Company_is the Lessee:

= The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for building. The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the nght to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether;

(1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

(1i1) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recogmses a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which 1t is a lessee, except for leases
Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset, The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the future lease payments, The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently 1 1 by 1 sing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount fo reflect the lease payments
made,

A lease liability is remeasured upon the oceurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally
also adjusts the leased assets. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet,

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Lease deposits given are financial instruments (financial asset) and need to be measured at fair value on mitial recognition, The difference between the fair value and the nominal value of deposits is
considered as Rent paid in advance and recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis. Unwinding effect of such difference is treated as other income for deposits given and is accrued as per
the EIR method.

Where the Company is the Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in
fixed assets. Lease income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable period of the lease term. Costs, including depreciation are recognized as
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized i diately in the S it of Profit and Loss.

Lease deposits received are financial instruments (financial liability) and need to be measured at fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the fair value and the nominal value of
deposits is considered as rent in advance and recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis. Unwinding effect of such difference is treated as interest expense (finance cost) for deposits
received and is accrued as per the EIR method.

Investments in Subsidiaries

Invesiments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying are i in the St of
Profit and Loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st March,2023

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprising of cost of construction/development and of materials is determined on FIFO basis,

Direct expenditure relating to development activities of properties under construction is inventorised. Indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) during the construction period is inventorised
to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) ncurred during the year not related to the construction activity is charged to the

Statement of Profit and Loss, Costs incurred/ items purchased specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ received, Inventories include construction werk-in-progress.
Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost, which comprises of cost of land, materials, services and other overheads related to projects under construction,

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is determined on FIFO basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue 15 recognised as follows:

Revenue from real estate projects

Ind AS 115 has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on March 28, 2018 and is effective from accounting Period beginning on or after April 01, 2018, )

Effective from April 1 2018, the Company has apphed Ind As 115: Revenue from contracts with customers which establishes comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is to be recognised.

The company recogmses revenue when (or as) it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to a customer, An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains
control of that asset.

The Company recognises revenue from contract with customer when it determines the satisfaction of performance obligations at a point in time, Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of
promised products to customer im an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products.

The Company uses cost based inpul method for measuring progress for performance obligation Under this method, the Company recognises revenue in proportion to the actual project cost mcurred
as against the total estimated project cost

Revenue from lease rentals and related income:

Lease revenue arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight line basis over the non cancellable period of the lease term, Straight Lined lease rentals are shown in Revenue from
Operations, Turnover based rents are recorded as mcome in the year in which they are eamed. Common Area Maintenance recoveries from Licensees are recognized as income in the year in which
the related costs are incurred

Interest
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. Interest income is included under the head 'other income' in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment 1s established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Revenue from Game Zone is recognised when it 13 earned and no significant uncertamty exists as to its realization or collection
All other revenues are recognized on an accrual basis.
Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of an asset that ily takes a sut ial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they are incurred.

Foreign Currency Translations

Items included in the fi 1al stat ts are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 1n which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee (INR), which s the Company’s functional and presentation currency,

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at prevailing rates on the respective date of transaction. Liabilities remained unsettled at the vear end are translated at year end rates. Differences in
transactions of assets and liabilities and realised gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

(i) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date
of the transaction.

(ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing on reporting date. Mon-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported
using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

(iii} Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the vear, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expense in the year in which they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and contributions thereto are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year,

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit plan towards retirement benefits, covering substantially all employees. Liability for the benefit 15 unfunded. Cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit eredit actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest) is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge/credit recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income ("OCI") in the period in which they oceur.

R 5T

gnised in OCI is reflected immediately in retained earnings and 15 not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,
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Income taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred taxes. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities n accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, Deferred
income tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws. Deferred
tax assels are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations
where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be
realised against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses its unrecogmized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably
certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized, Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certam that
sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or direetly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity respectively.

Expenditure on New Projects and Substantial Expansion

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period 15 capitalized as part of indirect construction cost to the extent to which
the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or 1s incidental thereto, Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to
construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Income earned during construction period is deducted from total of the indirect expenditure

All direct capital expenditure on expansion is capitalized. As regards indi penditure on exp on, only that portion 1s capitalized which represents marginal increase in such expenditure
mvolved as a result of capital expansion. Both direct and indirect expenditure are capitalized only if they increase value of the asset beyond its original standard of performance.

Segment Reporting Policy

Identification of Segments :

Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 Operating Segments, the Chairman and Managing Director / Chief Financial Officer evaluates the Company's performance based on
an analysis of vanous performance indicators by operating segment. The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of produets and services
provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. Analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major
operating divisions of the Company operate.

Segment revenue and expense include amounts which can be directly attributable to the segment and allocable on reasonable basis. Segment assets and liabilities are assets / liabilities which are
directly attributable to the segment or can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Income / expenses / assets / liabilities relating to the enterprise as a whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis to
business segments are reflected as unallocated income / expenses / assets / liabilities.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 15 calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and in respect of

which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimates required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the financial statement comprise cash at banks and on hand, demand depesit and short-term deposits, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Financial instruments
Financial Assets

Financial assets are recogmsed when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of
Financial assets which are recogmsed at far value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised m the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is
attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at amortised cost, fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial assets
are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for ing fi 1al assets.

All investments in equity instruments classified under fimancial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevoeably elect to measure the same either at
FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes election at FVTPL basis. Fair value changes excluding dividends,on equity mstruments measured at FVTPL are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss,
Dividend income on investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income' in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.
Impairment of financial assets

Expected credit losses are recogmized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in FVTPL category. For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per
Ind AS 109, the Company recognises |12-month expected credit losses for all origmated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased
significantly since its initial recogmtion. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the eredit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial
recognition, The Company's trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e.
expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to contractual provisions of an instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair
value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, A contingent liability also anises n
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance note on Schedule I1I to the Companies Act 2013, the Company has opted to present earnings before finance cost, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a
separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit / (loss) from continuing operations, In its measurement, the Company does
not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense but includes other income,




West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st March,2023

3

A,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

{Amount in TLakh)

Owned Assets
Gross block Depreciation Net block
Particulars As at Additions/ Deductions/ As at As at Deductions/ 3 As at As at As at
Assets classified
Ist April, 2022 | Adj Adj 31st March,2023 | st April,2022 | FOrtheyear | i stments . ;’ e]’ ; r::!; :e 3lst March, 2023 | 31st March, 2023 315t Mar, 2022
Freehold land 48331 483.31 2 = - 3 48331 48331
Leasehold land 150.48 150.48 10.20 2.55 - 12.75 137.73 140,28
Building 8,63787 11.64 8,649.51 1,441.88 389.70 - 1,831.58 6,817.93 7,195.99
Mall fitouts 673,94 50.02 0.08 732.88 332.65 93.92 0.01 426,57 306,31 34129
Plant & equipments 2,158.15 50.35 2,208.50 1,109.88 225.12 1,335.00 873,50 1,048 28
Fumniture & fixtures 359.29 16.57 375.86 113.73 36.09 E 149,82 226.04 245 55
Vehicles 2092 32.81 12.30 41.43 14.81 3.64 1042 8.03 33.40 6.11
Office equipmets 16.39 15.00 31.48 1166 299 14.65 16.83 473
Comg 36.62 6.73 43.35 34.12 197 z 36.00 7.26 251
Total 12,536.97 192.21 12.38 12,716.80 3,068.93 755,98 10.43 - 3,814.49 8,902.31 9,468.05
Gross block Depreciation Net block
Particulars As at Additions/ Deductions/ As at As at o thi veis Deductions/ i i Asat Asat As at
1st April, 2021 Adj Adj 31st March, 2022 | 1st April, 2021 OFIREYEAr | Adjustments | Assets classih 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
as held for sale
Freehold land 483.31 - _ 48331 s = - 4 483 31 48331
Leasehold land 150.48 - . 150,48 7.65 255 s 10.20 140,28 142.83
Building 8,629.57 833 0.03 8.637.87 1,053.21 38867 = 1,441.88 7.195.99 7,576.36
Mall fitouts 641,71 32.23 = 673.94 242,29 90.36 = 332.65 34129 39943
Plant & equipments 2,156.14 2.01 =~ 2,158.15 83383 276.05 1,109.88 1,048.27 132231
Furniture & fixtures 35814 115 5 359,29 77.18 36.55 = 113.73 24556 280,96
Vehicles 2092 o 2 20,92 111 3.70 - 14.81 6.11 9,81
Office equipmets 13.28 311 E 1639 9.22 2.44 - 11.66 473 4,05
Computer 35.99 0.63 - 36.62 2948 4.64 < 34.12 2,51 6.52
Total 12,489.54 47.46 0.03 12,536.97 2,263.97 804.96 = - 3,068.93 9,468.05 10,225.58
Right of use Assets {Amount in TLakh)
Gross block Depreciation Net block
Particulars As at Additions/ Deductions/ As at Asat T Deductions/ | Assets classified As at As at As at
15t April, 2022 Adjustments Adj 31st March, 2023 | 1st April, 2022 ¥ Adjustments | as held for sale 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2023 31st Mar, 2022
Building 21.70 - . 21.70 15.19 651 . - 21.70 - 6,51
Total 21.70 - = 21.70 15.19 6.51 - - 21.70 - 6.51
Grass block Depreciation Net block
Particulars Asat Additions/ Ded Asat As at For'th Deductions/ | Assets classified Asat Asat Asat
Ist April, 2021 | Adjustments | Adjustments | 31st March,2022 | 1st April, 2021 OFTIEYEAT | Adjustments | asheld for sale | 31stMarch,2022 | 31stMarch, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Building 12876 21.70 128.76 21.70 11037 15.19 110.37 15.19 6.51 1839
Total 128.76 21.70 128.76 21.70 110.37 15.19 110.37 15.19 6.51 18.39
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(Computer software) {2 in Lakhs)
Particulars Az At AsAt
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Gross block 49.73 4973
Additions - -
Deletion - P
Total 49.73 49.73
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 3323 25.08
Depreciation during the year 7.25 815
Deletion - -
Total 40,48 3323
Net block 925 16.50
Total 925 16,50
INVESTMENTS (NON CURRENT)
(2 in Lakhs)
As At As At

Particulars

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Unquoted Equity Instruments
Investment in Subsidiaries

65,27,666 Equity shares of 2 10 each fully paid up of Westfield Entertainment Pvt Ltd (31st March, 2022 : 65,27 666) 3,289.52 3,289.52
Unquoted Equity Instr
I share of ¥ 10 fully paid up in Hawcoplast Investments and Trading Limited (31st March, 2022 : 1) - -
Total 3,289.52 3,289.52
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT)
(% in Lakhs)
As At As At

Particulars

31st March, 2023

Security deposits

Jist March, 2022

Unsecured considered good 116.71 98.70
Capital advances - 9.74
Total 116.71 108.44
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars ARAL AsAL
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Deferred tax liabilities
On differences between book and tax depreciation 668.63 728.09
On lease rentals equalisation (4.41) 6.74
On account of fair valuation of redeemable preference shares and lease rent deposits 129.50 101.61
On fair valuation of investment = =
793.72 836,44
Deferred tax assets
On provision for doubtful debts 4217 47.99
On unabsorbed depreciation 2.548.53 2,547.73
On unabsorbed Capital Loss 1.470.11 1,184.66
On brought forward Losses 68.97 64410
On expenditure deductible on actual payment 11.23 948
On fair valuation of lease expenses - (0.33)
4,141.01 4,433.63
Deferred tax assets/(liability)-Net 334729 3,597.19

Deferred tax assets/(liability) recognized

The projects of the Company being capital intensive may not generate reasonable profits m the foreseeable future and hence Deferred tax assets on carry forward losses have not been recognised.

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

(Xin Lakhs)
Particulars As At As At
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Prepaid expenses 031 0.08
Unamortised ancilliary borrowing cost 21.04 26.06
Advance tax paid (net of provisions) 38752 23699
Total 408.87 263.13
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INVENTORIES
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars AsAL AUAL
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Construction material 46233 271.09
Construction work in progress 29,159.58 27.811.90
Stores & spares 26,99 14.23
Total 29,648.90 18,097.22
TRADE RECEIVABLES
(% in Lakhs)
. As At As At
Farticuinrs 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Over six months from the date they were due for payment
Trade receivables considered good — secured 16.49 19.09
Trade receivables considered good — unsecured 806.26 1,230.75
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (8.89) (8.89)
Trade receivables which have significant increase m credit risk 147.73 124.11
961.59 1,365.06
Less: Provision for trade receivables which have significant inerease in eredit risk (147.73) (124.11)
813.86 1,240.95
Other Receivables
Trade receivables considered good — secured 213.80 189,73
Trade receivables considered good — unsecured 1,759.30 504.17
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 10,93 57.67
1,984.03 751.57
Less: Provision for trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (10.93) (57.67)
1,973.10 693.90
Total 2,786.96 1,934.84
Ageing for Trade receivable as at 31-3-2023 is tioned as below
Qutstanding for following period from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 6 month |6 month to 1 year| 1-2 year 2 -3 year More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1,969.12 38.20 114.05 203.69 31034 2,63540
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk - 690 - - - 6.90
ii1) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit Impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good 1.74 3.98 6.90 4.06 132.63 149.31
(v) Disputed Trade receivables -Which have
Significant increase in credit risk 10,92 38.63 13.88 61.80 3542 160.65
{vi)Disputed Trade receivables - credit Impaired - . " B . .
Total 1,981.78 87.71 134.83 269.55 478.39 2,952.26
Less Allowance for doubtful trade receivable-Billed 167.55
Add Trade receivables unbilled 2.25
Net trade reccivables 2,786.96
Ageing for Trade receivable as at 31-3-2022 is tioned as below
O ling for following period from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 6 th |6 month to 1 year| 1-2 year 2 -3 year More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good G671.39 139.22 31155 497 88 163.58 1,783.62
(11) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have
sipnificant increase in credit risk 54.89 14.66 7.85 10.08 27.84 11532
i) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit Impaired - - - - . 1
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good 633 - 3.16 104.44 29.81 143.74
(v) Disputed Trade receivables -Which have
Significant increase in credit risk 259 50.12 .31 3.24 10.20 66.46
(vi)Disputed Trade receivables - credit Impaired - - - - - -
73520 204.00 322.87 615.64 131.43 2,109.14
Less Allowance for doubtful trade receivable-Billed 190.67
Add Trade receivables billes 16.37
Net trade receivables 1,934.84
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars ey Lo R
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents
(1) Balances with banks
- In current accounts 613.57 173.51
Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months - -
(ii} Cash in hand 6.12 566
Tatal 619,69 17917
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BANK BALANCE OTHER THEN CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(2 in Lakhs)

Particulars Ayt As At
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents
(1) Balances with banks
Held as margin money,guarantees or other earmarked balances 528.04 12540
Total 528.64 125.40
The fixed deposits are created for the Debt Service Reserve Account. As per terms of Term Loan Agreement, the Company shall maintain Debt Service Reserve Account amount equivalent to |
Margin money deposits given as security
Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of 2 12,87 Lakhs (315t March, 2022 212.33 Lakhs) are subject to lien with Maharashtra Pollution Control Board, Kalyan
Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of T 6.53 Lakhs (315t March, 2022: $6.21 Lakhs) are subject to lien with Maharashtra Pollution Control Board for Kalyan Mall
Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of 210,00 Lakhs/- (31st March, 2022: 1000 Lakhs) are subject to lien with Maharashtra Pollution Control Board, Aurangabad
LOANS (CURRENT)
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars At AsAL
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Other loans and advances 126.96 276.00
Total 126.96 276.00
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat AAAT
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Security deposits
- Unsecured considered good 16.63 17.07
Total 16.63 17.07
OTHER CURRENT ASSET
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars As AL Anat
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Prepaid expenses 1639 14.05
Balance with government authorities 214.85 19589
Unamortised ancilliary borrowing cost 5.02 5.02
Accrued income 28.51 46.04
Others 2.15 -
Rent paid in advance current g 0.44
Total 266.92 261.44
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars At AvAL
* 31st March, 2023 31st March,2022 |
AUTHORISED
3,02,39,900 Equity Shares of 210 each 3,023.99 3,023.99
(31st Mareh, 2022; 3,02,39,838)
12 Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (OCCRPS) of 210 each R
(31st March, 2022: 12)
2,70,100 Redeemable Preference Shares of T10 each 27.01 27.01
(31st March, 2022: 2,70,100)
Total 3,051.00 3,051.00
ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
2,90,49,299 Equity Shares of 210 each fully paid up 2,904.93 2,904.93
(31st March, 2022: 2,90,49,287)
Total 2,904.93 2,904.93
Reconciliation of equity shares t beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares
Particulars As At 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Face Value (% in
No. Lakhs) No. Face Value (T in Lakhs)
At beginning of the year 2,90,49,287 2,904,93 2,88,42,637 2,884.26
Add: converted / Issued during the year * 12 0.00 2,06,650 2067
Less: Bought back during the year ” = s "
Outstanding at end of the year 2,90,49,299 2,904.93 2,90,49,287 2,904,93

* 12 equity shares issued on conversion of OCCRPS at the option of shareholder in the ratio of 1:1 (31st March 2022 2,06,650 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each fully paid up were issued at a

premium of Rs, 1 50 per share via rights issue)
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Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 210 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company deelares and pays dividends in Indian
rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

For the year ended 31st March, 2023, no dividend is proposed to be paid to the equity shareholders (31st March, 2022: Nil).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be

in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Shares held by Holding Company

Out of the equity issued by the Company, the shares held by its holding company are as below: (X in Lakhs)
Particulars Anat ArAt
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Winmore Leasing and Holdings Limited, the holding company
2,71,74,439 Equity Shares of 210 each 2,717.44 271744
(31st March, 2022: 2,71,74,439)
2,717.44 2,717.44
The holding company has 93.55% shareholding-
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As At 31st March, 2023 As At 315t March, 2022
Particulars % holding in % holding in the

No. the class No. class
Equity Shares of 310 each
Winmore Leasing and Holdings Limited (Holding Company) 2,71,74,439 93.55% 2,71,74, 439 93.55%

As per records of the Company including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from share holders regarding beneficial interest, the above s

hareholding represents both

Shareholding of Promoters As At As At
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
% Change during the
year
Promoter's Name No. of Shares % of total shares | No.ofShares | % of total shares
Winmore Leasing and Holdings Limited 2,71,74,439 93,55% 2,71,74,439 93.55% 0.00%
West Leisure Resorts Lid. 10,41,828 3.55% 10,41,828 3.59% 0.00%
Anurag Welfare trust (Through its Trusteees Mr.'Banwarilal
Jatia jointly with Smt.Usha Devi Jatia) 8,33,012 287% 8,33,000 2.87% 0.00%
Houghton Hardeastle (India) Pvt Ltd 5 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Akshay Ayush Impex Pvt Ltd, 5 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Acacia Impex Pvt Ltd 5 0.00% 5 0.00% 0.00%
Vandeep Tradelinks Private Limited 5 0.00% 5 0.00% 0.00%
Vishwas Investment & Trading Co Pvt Led - 0.00% 5 0.00% 0.00%
Anand Veena Twisters Pvt Ltd - 0.00% 5 0.00% 0.00%
OTHER EQUITY
(2 in Lakhs)
2 As At As At
Particulars

31st March, 2023

Securities premium

31st March, 2022

Opening balance 21,711.07 21,796,99
Add : Premium on issue of preference share / equity shares - 289.31
Less: Utilised towards redemption of preference shares (0.49) (375.23)
Closing balance 21,710.58 21,711.07
Surplus/{Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance (16,543 .48) (15,454.79)
Add/(Less) for the period 1,36232 (1,088.62)
Impact on account of employee benefits expense (11.69) (0.07)
Impact on account of change in the fair value of financial instrument - -
Closing balance (15,192.85) (16,543.48)
Total 6,517.73 5,167.59
NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars AvAt Ax AL

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Secured loans
Term loans from banks (refer (A) and (B) below) 9.,596.10 12,164.15
Unsecured loans
Liability component of OCCRPS - 0.01
Total 9,596.10 12,164.16
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Term loans balance as at March 31, 2023 represents:

A. (i) Term loan - Lease Rental Discounting availed by the Company in June 2016 at rate of interest equivalent to one year MCLR of the bank. The loan is secured by first charge by way of equitable
mortgage on Metro Mall Land and Building of the company and hypothecation of Lease Receivables from the said property. The loan is repayable from July 2016 to December 2028.

(a)

(b)

hypothecation of current assets including receivables of Metro Grande at Kalyan  The loan is repayable from June 2020 to September 2022,

The Company has repaid the same without any default.

Metro Mall Land and Building of the Company and hypothecation of Lease Receivables from the said property. The loan is repayable from June 2020 to August 2030,

The Company has repaid the same without any default.

(i1} Term loan taken in March 2017 and during the year at rate of interest equivalent to Six Month MCLR of the bank plus 1.45%. The loan is secured by a first charge on the land, buildings and

(11i) Term loan taken in February 2019 and during the year at rate of interest equivalent to One year MCLR of the bank plus 0.75%. The loan is secured by first charge by way of equitable mortgage on

The company has availed the scheme of the central government for Emergency Credit line Guaranatee scheme and RBL bank has sanctioned an amount of T14.94 Cr on 25.01.2021 The Company

has availed the same and the loan 1s repayable from June 2022 to May 2026.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(T in Lakhs)
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
OCCRPS - 0.01
Redeemable preference shares @11% 236091 2,224 81
Redeemable preference shares @12% 628.16 57630
Security deposits 1,054.44 823.61
Total 4,043.51 3,624.73
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at beginning and at end of the year
Preference shares- OCCRPS
Particulars As At 31st March, 2023 As At 31st March, 2022
Face Value (¥ in
No. Lakhs) No. Face Value (2 in Lakhs)
At beginning of the year 12 0.00 12 0.00
Converted into equity shares during the year (12) (0.00) - =
QOutstanding at end of the year - - 12 0.00
11% Redeemable preference shares
Particulars As At 31st March, 2023 As At 31st March, 2022
Face Value (T in
No. Lakhs) No. Face Value (¥ in Lakhs)
At beginning of the year 96,100 9.61 1,31,100 13.11
Redeemed during the year at option of the Company as per terms mentioned in 19 (c) . (4,900) (0.49) (35,000) (3.50)
Issued during the year - - - -
O ling at end of the year 91,200 9.12 96,100 9.61
12% Rede ble preference shares
Particulars As At 31st March, 2023 As At 31st March, 2022
Face Value (T in
No. Lakhs) No. Face Value (T in Lakhs)
At beginning of the year 46,700 4.67 45,700 4.57
Issued during the year - - 1,000 0.10
Outstanding at end of the year 46,700 4.67 46,700 4.67

Terms of Conversion/ Redemption of OCCRPS

As per terms of the allotment, the Company shall declare and pay dividends and all unpaid dividends, if any, subject to the Company having distributable profits in accordance with provisions of
Section 123 of the Companies Aet, 2013. Dividend rate shall be subject to revision every year on basis of Bank rate prevailing as on 31st March, immediately preceding the date of meeting of the
Company's Board of Directors at which the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss pertaining to the relevant financial vear are approved by the Board, The rate of dividend will be such Bank
Rate plus 2%, provided that in no case the dividend rate shall exceed 10% p.a. The dividend rate is 6.25% for the year ended March, 2023 (315t March, 2022 - 6.25%),

Each holder of OCCRPS can opt to convert its preference shares into equity shares on a date not being beyond expiry of the 19th anniversary from the Date of Issue i.e.19th December 2010, If a

holder exercises the conversion option, the Company will issue | equity share for each preference share held.

1f OCCRPS holders do not exercise their conversion option, all preference shares will be redeemable at end of the 19" anniversary from the date of issue. In event of liquidation of the Company
before conversion/ redemption of OCCRPS, holders of OCCRPS will have priority over equity shares in payment of dividend and repayment of capital,

Terms of Conversion/ R ble Preference Shares

1 . Red
P of

The preference shares do not carry night to dividend. Alse, they carry right to vote only in aceordance with provisions of section 47 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Redemption of Red

ble Preference Shares:

i. At option of the Company:

The preference shares would be redeemable at any time within 20 years from the date of issue at option of the Company by giving a 48 hours prior written notice to the holder(s) at the redemption
price caleulated based on Internal Rate of Return (IRR) of 11% compounded annually from the date of receipt of the last call money till the date of redemption.

ii. At option of the Preference Shareholders:

The preference shares would be redeemable at any time within 20 years from the date of issue at option of the holders by giving a 15 days prior written notice to the Company at a redemption price as
per the specified rates compounded annually from the date of receipt of last call money till the date of redemption.
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Terms of Conversion/ Red of 12% R

ble Preference Shares

i. At option of the Company:

The Preference Shares would be redeemable at any time within 20 years from the date of issue at the option of the Issuer Company by giving a 48 - hours prior written notice to the holder(s) at the
redemption price calculated based on Internal Rate of Return (IRR) at the rate of 12% compounded annually from the date of allotment till the date of redemption of the Preference Shares,

ii. Atoption of the Preference Shareholders:

The Preference Shares would be redeemable at any time within 20 vears from the date of issue at the option of the Preference Shareholder(s) by giving a 15 days prior written notice to the Company
at the redemption price as per the sepecified rates compouned annually from the date of allotment till the date of redemption of the Preference Shares.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As At 31st March, 2023 As At 31st March, 2022
% holding in % holding in the
No. No.
the class class

(i) OCCRPS of 210 each fully paid
Lalita Devi Jatia Jointly with Banwari Lal Jatia
Banwari Lal Jatia Jointly with Usha Devi Jatia - 0.0% 12 100.0%
(ii) 11%Redeemable preference shares of 210 each
Vishwas Investment & Trading Co. Pvt Ltd 10,100 11.1% 10,100 10.5%
Anand Veena Twisters Pvt Ltd 10,000 11.0% 10,000 10.4%
Anurag Welfare Trust (Through its TrusteesMr. Banwarilal Jatia and Smt Usha Devi Jatia) 66,500 72.9% 66,500 69.2%
Anurag Jatia jointly with Banwarilal Jatia - 0.0% 4,900 51%
Houghton Hardeastle (India) Private Limited 4,600 5.0% - 0.0%
(iii) 12% Redeemable preference shares of 10 each
Anurag Welfare Trust (Through its Trustees Mr, Banwarilal Jatia and Smt Usha Devi Jatia) 45,700 97.9% 45,700 97.9%

legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

As per records of the Company mcluding its regi

oF shiaretiold

s/members and other declarations rec

eived from share holders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both

Shareholding of Promoters (OCCPRS) As At As At 7
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 W Ehangs during the
ar
Promoter's Name No. of Shares 9% of total shares | No. of Shares | % of total shares s
Anurag Welfare Trust (Through its Trustees Mr, Banwari
Lal Jatia Jointly with Smt. Usha Devi Jatia) - 0.00% 12 100.00% -100%
Shareholding of Promoters (11% RPS) As At As At -
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 % Change during the
year
Promoter's Name No. of Shares % of total shares | No. of Shares | % of total shares
Anurag Jatia jointly with Banwarilal Jatia - 0.0% 4,900 5.10% -5.10%
Houghton Hardcastle (India) Private Limited 4,600 5.0% 4,600 4.79% 0.26%
Vishwas Investment & Trading Co. Pvt Ltd 10,100 11.1% 10,100 10.51% 0.56%
Anand Veena Twisters Put Ltd 10,000 11.0% 10,000 10.41% 0.56%
Anurag Welfare Trust (Through its Trustees
Mr. Banwarilal Jatia and Smt Usha Devi Jatia) 66,500 72.9% 66,500 69.20% 372%
Shareholding of Promoters (12% RPS) As At As At
315t March, 2023 31st March, 2022 % Change during the
year
Promoter's Name No. of Shares % of total shares | No. of Shares | % of total shares
Anurag Welfare Trust (Through its Trustees
Mr. Banwarilal Jatia and Smt Usha Devi Jatia) 45,700 97 86% 45,700 97.86% 0.00%
Houghton Hardeastle (India) Private Limited 1,000 2.14% 1,000 2.14% 0.00%
PROVISIONS
(¥ in Lakhs)
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Provision for emplovee benefits
Provision for gratuity 36.71 34.10
Total 36.71 34.10
OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Z in Lakhs)
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Rent received in advance 11.43 5.47
Total 11.43 5.47
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
(2 in Lakhs)
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Loan from subsidiary company* 6,312.79 5,698 96
Other loans and advances - 100.00
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,174.70 2,215.81
Total 7,487.49 8,014.77

*Loan from Subsidiary is taken for Business use and same will be repayable on or before 26th September 2023 iv. Interest on the ICD shall be payable on September 26, 2023 or date of repayment of

the loan, whichever is earlier.
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TRADE PAYABLES
(% in Lakhs)
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Trade payables
Due to micro and small enterprises 141.83 7292
Due to others 1,088.97 924.84
Total 1,230.80 997.76
Ageing for trade bl ling as at March 31, 2023 is as follows: (% in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
i)MSME 141.83 - - - 141.83
iijOthers §22.21 9.71 10.89 8.11 850.92
iil)Disputed dues MSME : = = [l -
iii)Disputed dues others - - - = =
964.04 9.71 10.89 8.11 992.75
Add:Accured Expenses 238.05
Total 1,230.80
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows: (T in Lakhs)
0 ling for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
iJMSME 7292 - - - 72.92
ii)Others 650.83 34.72 33.37 7.05 725.97
iii)Disputed dues MSME . = = @ =
iii)Disputed dues others # & . [ Z
723.75 34.72 33.37 7.05 7598.8%
Add:Accured E 198.87
Total 957.76
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(% in Lakhs)
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st Mareh, 2022
Security deposits 182.92 186.19
Total 182,92 186.19
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(% in Lakhs)
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Revenue billed in advance 563 512
Other advances
Capital creditors 47,87 2849
Retention monies 325.81 24767
Advance received from customers 1,470.41 1,606.96
Others
Statutory dues payable 24.67 3880
Salary payable 66.53 5022
Amount due to customers-unearmed revenue on sale of property 12,524.45 873484
Rent received in advance 17.31 36.89
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 197,53 174.21
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 21.61 10,74
Total 14,701.82 10,933.94
CURRENT PROVISIONS
(2 in Lakhs)
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Provision for emplovee benefits
Provision for gratuity 792 357
Total 7.92 3.57
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(¥ in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Sale - property development * 5,558.93 61,74
Sales-game zone** 40231 124.63
Lease revenue 298.66 128.55
Lease starightlining (17.53) 17.14
Revenue share 2,165.20 981.74
Other operating revenue®** 1,507.12 1,002.02
Total 9,914.69 2,315.82

* Sale - property development includes revenue from assignment of leaseheld rights in Aurangabad amounting to 2 5407.63 Lakhs
*# Sales - game zone is net of taxes

*#% Other operating income includes property tax amounting to ¥ 14,85 Lakhs (31st March, 2022: 26.52 Lakhs) recovered towards Kalyan Mall.
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OTHER INCOME
(¥ in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest income:
On bank deposits 14.37 8.05
Others - 022
Other income* 130.03 92.04
Total 144.40 100.31
* Other income includes Interest on meome tax refund of ¥ 16.77 Lakhs (315t March, 2022; 33,95 Lakhs)
CONSTRUCTION COST
(T in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Inventory at the beginning of the year 28,056 83 25,609.99
(+) Project related expenses 5,563.52 2,510.80
(-) Inventory at the end of the year (29,591.33) (28,056.83)
Total 4,029.02 63.96
Details of cost of construction of properties (T in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Development costs * 3.921.09 10.70
Consultancy & architect fees 34 294
Civil work & expenses to contractors 7035 50.81
Miscell IS EXpenses 34.17 -0.49
Total 4,029.02 63.96
* Development costs includes costs related to assignment of leasehold rights in Aurangabad amounting to ¥ 3908 43 Lakhs
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(% in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Salaries wages and bonus* 399,96 386.81
Contribution to provident and other funds 14.35 13,04
Gratuity expenses 7.51 7.61
Staff welfare expenses 9.31 4.30
Total 431.13 411.76
*Net of capitalization and inventorised T 119,28 Lakhs (315t March, 2022 ; ¥ 146.33 Lakhs)
FINANCE COST
(2 in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest expenses® 1,161.59 807.11
Bank charges 485 0.96
Amortization of anciliary costs 4.05 4.08
Interest expenses for lease liability o 1.69
Total 1,170.49 813.84
* Net of capitalisation and inventorised T 566.59 Lakhs (31st March, 2022 2 646,32 Lakhs)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
(% in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Depreciation on tangible assets 755,97 804,96
Amortization of intangible assets 7.25 815
Amortization of right of use asset 6.51 15.19
Total 769.73 828.30

pERT:gS
4

o
MUMBAI }Z
< M

S /\‘Y/

\Y)
&




33

34

35

West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

OTHER EXPENSES
(2 in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Rent 27.30 10,88
Power and fuel 732.29 400.84
Water charges 19.40 2908
Rates and taxes* 125.02 108.18
Insurance 3099 19.65
Repairs and maintenance 49587 338.14
Advertising and sales promotion 136.53 3928
| Brokerage and discounts 37.53 18.69
Travelling and conveyance 21.94 11.93
Communication costs 10.14 6.02
Printing and stationery 556 383
Legal and professional fees 33638 19826
Payment to auditors (refer note 41) 825 6.75
Utility management service charges 64.19 36.56
Security charges 196.02 124.72
Provision for doubtful debts (6.44) 1.99
Miscellaneous expenses 5543 3210
Total 2,296.40 1,386.90
* Rates and taxes include property tax paid amounting to ¥ 115,02 Lakhs (31st March, 2022: 111.05 Lakhs) towards Kalyan Mall.
Earnings Per Share 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(¥ in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Loss after tax 136232 (1,088.63)
Laoss attributable to equity shareholders 1,362 32 (1,088.63)
Weighted average number of shares 290.49 289.16
Basic and diluted earnings per share ¥ 4,69 (3.76)

Segment Information

Business Segments :

As per Indian Accounting Standard 108 *Operating Segments’, the Company has reported ‘Segment Information’, as described below:

The Company is involved in construction and management of shopping malls and leasing commercial space therein in India,

The Company has defined its operations into five major b
Particulars of the type of products and services provided by each reportable segment are as follows:

Retail Segment includes activities related to construction and leasing of shopping malls and related services.
Family Entertainment Centre (FEC) segment includes activity related to Game Zone for Family Entertainment.
Residential Segment includes activities related to construction and sale of residential premises,

Office Segment includes activities related to construction and sale of commercial premises,

Warehousing Development Segment includes construction and sale of warehousing premises.

Other investments / assets, long term resources raised by the Company, financing liabilities and related income and expense are considered under Unallocated.

2 There are Two external customers revenues from whom exceeds 10% of the company's revenue, The revenues from the said customers are disclosed under *Retail Segment".

Retail, Residential and Office Developments for Sale and Warehousing Development and Family Entertainment Centre (FEC).
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Year Ended 31st March, 2023

(% in Lakhs)
Retail Residential Office Warehousing FEC Unallocable Total

REVENUE
External sales 3,952.15 92.55 58.75 5,407.63 403.61 - 9.914.69
Total revenue 3,952.15 92.55 58.75 5,407.63 403.61 - 9,914.69
RESULT
Segment result 1,543.40 (34.69) (2.25) 1,471.59 292.23 - 3,270.28
Unallocated corporate expenses - = - - - 881.87 881.87
Operating profit 1,543.40 (34.69) (2.25) 1,471.59 292.23 (881.87) 2,388.41
Finance costs 707.64 54.77 206.46 0.7 6.57 194.34 1,170.49
Other Income 68.65 26.82 1.69 - 12.29 3495 144.40
Income taxes # - = = < & =
Profit from ordinary activities 904.41 (62.64) (207.02) 1,470.88 29795 (1,041.26) 1,362.32
Extraordinary item, net - = & i ~ - =
Net profit / (loss) 904 41 (62.64) (207.02) 1,470.88 29795 (1,041.26) 1,362.32
Other Comprehensive Income = = - g = (11.69) (11.69)
Net profit / (loss) 904.41 (62.64) (207.02) 1,470.88 297.95 (1,052.95) 1,350.63
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets 9,477.52 27,429.08 1,452.45 4,494.30 213.76 - 43,067.11
Unallocated corporate assets - - - = a 3,654.25 3,654.25
Total assets 9,477.52 27,429.08 1,452.45 4,494.30 213.76 3,654.25 46,721.36
Segment liabilities 7,301.30 20,458.07 1,765.79 1,757.46 109.34 - 31,391.96
Unallocated corporate liabilities = - - " - 5,906.74 5,906.74
Total liabilities 7,301.30 20,458.07 1,765.79 1,757.46 109.34 5,906.74 37,298.70
Capital expenditures
Tangible assets 83.21 0.58 B - 67.42 23.36 174.57
Intangible assets - - - - - - -
Depreciation 714.06 11.11 - 8.40 17.53 487 75597
Amortization - - - - - 13.76 13.76
Year Ended 31st March, 2022

(% in Lakhs)

Retail Residential Office Warehousing FEC Unallocable Total

REVENUE
External sales 2,129.44 67.68 (5.94) - 124,63 - 2,315.82
Total revenue 2,129.44 67.68 (5.94) - 124.63 - 2.315.82
RESULT
Segment result 362.64 (16.96) (17.34) (17.75) 36.48 - 347.07
Unallocated corporate expenses B - - - - 722.16 722.16
Operating profit 362.64 (16.96) (17.34) (17.75) 36.48 (722.16) (375.08)
Finance costs 45345 46.49 149.67 (3.69) 15,73 152.19 813.84
Other Income 39.44 10.21 - - 0.41 50.26 100.31
Income taxes - - - - - - -
Profit from ordinary activities (51.37) (53.24) (167.01) (14.06) 21.15 (824.10) (1,088.63)
Extraordinary item, net = = - = 3 = -
Net profit / (loss) (51.37) (33.24) (167.01) (14.06) 21.15 (824.10) (1,088.63)
Other Comprehensive Income = - - - - (0.07) (0.07)
Net profit / (loss) (51.37) (53.24) (167.01) (14.06) 21.15 (824.18) (1,088.70)
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets 9,992.14 22,594.07 1,577.36 6,294.75 144.71 - 40,603.03
Unallocated corporate assets - - - - - 3,440.26 3,440.26
Total assets 9,992.14 22,594.07 1,577.36 6,294.75 144.71 3,440.26 44,043.29
Segment liabilities 8,993.59 17,410.19 1,810.11 2,135.42 204.24 - 30,553.55
Unallocated corporate liabilities - - - - - 5417.21 5,417.21
Total liabilities 8,993.59 17,410.19 1,810.11 2,135.42 204.24 5,417.21 35,970.76
Capital expenditures
Tangible assets 39.66 - - - 1.17 3.72 44,55
Intangible assets - - - B - - -
Depreciation 714.97 11.17 - 840 63,53 17,75 §15.81
Amortization - - - - - 12.49 12.49
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Related Party Disclosures

Related Parties: Names of Related Parties and Relationships:

Enterprise where control exists
Holding Company Winmore Leasing and Holdings Ltd.

Subsidiary Westfield Entertainment (P) Ltd.

Transactions with enterprises over which key management personnel/Directors/Person or close members of the family of a person are able to exercise significant influence
i) Hardeastle Petrofer Private Limited

11) Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

iii}Vandeep Trade Links Private Limited

iv}Houghton Hardcastle Inida Private Limited

Key Management Personnel Gaurang Agrawal — Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
Anup Kumar Lath — Chief Finaneial Officer (CFO) (w.e.f. 26th Sep 2022)
Nitin Mhatre - Director
Radha Gohil - Company Secretary
Shyam Khandelwal - Director
Sunil Kantilal Triveds - Director
Vaibhav Dodia -Director (w.e.f. 22nd April 2022)
Sundeep Kumar — Chief Financial Officer (CFO) (till 1 5th September 2022)

Disclosure of Transactions between the Company and Related Parties and Outstanding Balances as at the 31,3.2023

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(2 in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Enterprise where Control Exists
i) Winmore Leasing and Holdings Ltd.
Issue of Nil (Previous year 2,06,650) Equity shares - 309.98
ii} Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Interest on loan 414.61 364,57
Loan repaid 98.00 853.72
Loan received 362.00 1,432.50
Amount due (to) related party (6,531.93) (5,873.17)

Transactions with enterprises over which key management personnel/Directors/Person or close members of the family of a person are able to exercise significant influence

Hardeastle Petrofer Private Limited
Car rent income 2.40 3.00

Outstanding balances
Amount due from related party - 0.53

(ii} Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Rental income for premises leased 118.52 827
Common area maintenance income for premises leased 22.20 2220
Income - reimbursement for premises leased 24,42 12.67
Income towards professional services - 492
Expenses - reimbursement for office premises 2.65 2.65

Outstanding balances

Lease deposit taken (66.25) (66.25)
Ampunt due to related parties (5.19) (45.06)
Amount due from related parties 50.04 110.44
(iti) Vandeep Trade Links Private Limited
Expenses for office premises 24.78 16.52
Expenses Common area maintenance for office premises 828 552
Security depsoit given for office primises - 16.53
Outstanding balances
Amount due from related parties 16.53 16.53
(iv) Houghton Hardcastle Inida Private Limited
Loan recerved - 222,00
Loan repaid 100.00 122.00
Preference shares allotted - 10.00
Interest paid 2.65 11,93
Qutstanding balances
Amount due (to) related party = (110.74)
(v) Anurag Jatia HUF
Redemption of 4900 redeemable preference share 73.76 -
A person or relative is having significant influence over reporting entity
i) Monica Mhatre
Professional Fee 12.00 5

danagement Personnel

Remuneration
Amount paid to related party 164.02 87.01
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Leases

Company as Lessor

The Company has entered into agreed Heads of Terms and registered agreements with retailers in respect of its mall at Kalyan, These leases have non-cancellable lease terms of 3 years and include a
clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge every 3 years, if the lease is renewed

The future minimum lease incomes in respect of the non cancellable period in those leases are as follows:

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(% in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
Not later than one year 1,036.38 349,96
Later than one years but not later than five years 332385 942.82
Later than 5 years < -
Total future minimum payments receivables 1,369.23 1,292.78

Company as Lessee
The following 1s the break up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023

(Lin Lakhs)

Particulars AgY s
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Non current = -
Current - 6.08
Total - 6.08
The following is the movement of Lease Liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2023
(2 in Lakhs)
Particulars AsAs Axak
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Balance at the beginning 6.08 17.60
Additions - 21.70
Finance cost accrued during the year - .69
Deletions/Adjustment - 18.39
Payment of lease liabilities 6.08 16.52
Balance at the end - 6.08
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted basis:
(Zin Lakhs)
Particulars SN AEAL
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Less than one year - 6,20
one to five years - -
More than five years - -
Total - 6.20
The company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
Amounts recognised in S it of Profit and Loss: (R in Lakhs)
Particulars AsAL At
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Depreciation expense on right of use assets 6.51 15.19
Interest expense on lease hability - 1.69
Total 6.51 16.88

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress includes expenditure incurred during the implementation period for bringing a project in the condition of its led use. Capitalisation is done in the ratio of phased
implementation. The following expenditure is carried forward as capital work-in-progress.
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(¥ in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)

Civil work (including material) = .
Other overheads = P

Capitalized Borrowing Costs
The borrowing cost capitalized during the year ended 315t March, 2023 was ¥ NIL (315t March, 2022: 2 1.39 Lakh) and is part of capital work-in-progress and property, plant and equipment.

Gratuity and other Post-Employment Benefit Plans:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of continuous service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for
each completed year of service, This benefit is unfunded. The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status
and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans,

Statement of Profit and Loss

Net employee benefit expense recognised in employee cost

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(2 in Lakhs) (® in Lakhs)
Current service cost 493 5.46
Interest cost 2.58 2.15
Expense recognised in the Stat of Profit & Loss (Refer note 30) 7.51 7.61
Expense recognised in other comprehensive income
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (2 in Lakhs)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation for the period 11.69 0.07
Net actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in OCI 11.69 0.07
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Balance Sheet
Benefit liability
Present value of defined benefit obligation 44.63 37.67
Benefit liability 44.63 37.67
Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation :
Opening defined benefit obligation 37.67 274
Interest cost 2.58 215
Current service cost 4.93 546
Benefits pard (12.24) (2.75)
Actuarial (gam) / loss on obligation 11,69 0.07
Closing defined benefit obhigation 44.63 37.67
The ptions used in ting for the gratuity plan are set out below:

2022-23 2021-22
Discount rate 6.84% 6.57%
Future salary increases 7.00% 7.00%
Employee turnover 10.00% 10.00%
Expected return on plan assets 0% 0%

The Company evaluates these assumptions annually based on its long-term plans of growth and industry standards. The unrecognized net actuarial loss / (gain) at 31st March, 2023 15 ¥ 11.69 Lakh -
31st March, 2022 . 0.07 Lakh

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation 44,63 31.67 32.74 42.83 2736
Experience adjustment on plan labilities 13.02 on (13.48) (0.73) 0.93

Experience adjustment on plan assets

Contingencies and Capital commitments

A suit for injunction was filed before the Delhi High Court seeking injunction against the Company from using the word ‘Metro’.
The amount of ¢laim against the company (not acknowledged as debt) is 2 20 lacs (previous year 2 20 lacs),

The Company is contesting the claim and does not believe that the proceedings will have any material adverse impact on its financials.

Other claims

Six consumer cases have been filed by purchasers of units in a property developed by the Company in State Consumer Forum alleging shortfall in area of tenements given and the percentage of
loading charged. The matters are pending disposal.

i) A time barred law suit is filed in Kalyan Court against the company by some persons inter alia claiming tenancy rights over the Kalyan land through their alleged predecessor in title.

iii) A time barred law suit is filed in Kalyan Court against the company inter alia claiming ownership over part of land in possession of the Company at Kalyan, The matter concerns approx. 2200 sq.ft.

land area, A Writ Petition arising out of an interlocutory order passed by Kalyan Court in favour of Company in the above suit is also filed against the Company in Bombay High Court. Both the Swuit
as well as Writ Petition are pending in Kalyan and Bombay High Court, respectively .

iv) An occupant in the Residential Complex developed by the Company has filed a suit in a Kalyan Court asking for space for parking,

v) Some occupants of the Residential Complex have filed complaints against the Company before the Consumer Forum alleging deficiency of service and delay in giving possession,

The Company is contesting these claims and does not believe that the proceedings will have a material adverse impact on it,
The Company 15 contesting the aforesaid matters and 1s advised and believes that the proceedings will have no adverse effect on its financials.

One customer of Tower C has filed case with RERA authority as he wished to cancel the flat and post cancellation wanted full GST refund which company has denied as per GST law. “The Company
is contesting this claims and does not believe that the proceedings will have a material adverse impact on it.

Capital Commitments

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(¥ in Lakhs) (¥ in Lakhs)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 26.21 2892
Other commitments* 2,004 28 2,744.73
Total 2,120.49 2,773.65

*Other commitments include development and construction cost towards mixed use properties to be incurred in future,
Supplementary Statutory Information

Expenditure in foreign currency (Accrual Basis)
Travelling expenses
Professional fees

Value of Imports
Other material

Payments to Auditors:
a) As auditors (excluding taxes)
b) In other capacity
¢) Out of pocket expenses

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Total

(% in Lakhs) (® in Lakhs)
825 6.75
0.15 040
8.40 7.15
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West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st March,2023

Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has
notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting
period beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases.

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2023

Increase mn Fiance cost
Increase in Depreciation and Amortisation cost
Decrease in other expenses

(Inerease)/Decrease in Net Profit before tax

6.51
6.20

0.32

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2022
1.69
15.19
16.08
0.80

Further,the net assets and net liabilities as at 31st March,2023 have been increased by ¥ lakh Nil /<(31st March, 2022: ¥ lakh 6.50 Jand 2 lakh Nil /{315t March, 2022: 2 lakh 18.39) respectively.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade recervables, investments, short-term borrowings, other current financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate the carrying amounts
because of the short term nature of these financial instruments.

The amortized cost using effective interest rate (EIR) of nen-current financial assets consisting of security deposits 1s not significantly different from the carrying amount,

Financial assets which are neither over due nor impaired include cash and cash equivalents and security deposits,

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

A% e mesmaa

Carring Value

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Particulars Fair value . Fati value :
s }:::;il:g; e “:;:::hmugh Amortised cost At Cost through profit or A va{l)uélthrough Amortised cost
loss s
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 619.69 - - - 179.17
Bank balance - - - 528.64 - - - 12540
Trade receivables - - - 2,786.96 - - - 1,934 84
Loans - - - 126.96 - - - 276,00
Other financial Assets - - - 13334 - - - 12551
Investments
Investment in subsidiary 3,289.52 - - 3,289.52 = =
Investment in equity - - 2 - - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings = ! - 17,083.59 - - - 20,178.93
Other financial liabilities - - - 4,226.43 - - - 381092
Lease liabilities - - - - - 6.08
Trade payables - - - 1,230,80 - - - 997.76

Fair value hierarchy

The following is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technigue:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities

(T in Lakhs)

Particulars

Fair Value

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance

Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

Investment in subsidiary
Investment in equity
Investment in mutual fund

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Redecemable preference shares
Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the period.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,other bank balance, trade receivables and short-term borrowings are considered to be the same as their fair values, The fair values of security

The rate of interest in respect of financial assets and financial liabilities at each reporting date approximate the market rate of interest. Hence, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

approximate their carrying values.




45

A)

B)

]

=

i

=

iii)

West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to various financial risks generally prevailing in its sector and in the economy. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the market value of unsold inventory will fluctuate because of changes m market prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: mterest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk, such as price risk and commodity risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes m
market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by observing the changes in market scenario and by holding negotiations as regards interest rates and repayment terms.

Interest rate sensitivity

With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Years lncrea.seuf’ Dec.rease n Amount in 2 Lakh
basis point

2023

IR +25 (26.93)

INR 25 2693

2022

INR 425 (35.95)

INR -25 35.95

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in

Commodity price risk

The Companys activities are exposed to steel and cement price risks and therefore its overall risk management program focuses on the volatile nature of the steel and cement market, thus seeking to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance on account of such volatility.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, Credit risk arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from lessors/customers and other statutory deposits with regulatory agencies and also arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rated banks and institutions and trying to retain sufficient balances in bank accounts required to meet a
manth’s operational costs. The management reviews the bank accounts on regular basis and fund drawdowns are planned to ensure that there is minimal surplus cash in bank accounts. The Company
does a proper financial and credibility check on the lessors before taking any property on lease and hasn’t had a single instance of non-refund of security deposit on vacating the leased property. The
Company does not foresee any credit risks on deposits with regulatory authorities.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 is the carrying amounts as mentioned in Note 7,7a, 8, 12,
13,14, 14a and 15.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due, The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet 1ts liabilities when due. The Company's objective is to maintai inuity of funding and flexibility through sale receipts and loans.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities:

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 3 month | 3 months to 12 | 1 year to 5 years More than 5 years Total
months

As at 31st March, 2023
Short term borrowings* 279.36 7,208,13 - - 748749
Long term borrowings* - - 768326 1,912.84 9,396.10
Trade payables 141 83 1,088.97 - - 1,230.80

421.19 8,297.10 7,683 1,912.84 18,314.39
As at 31st March, 2022
Short term borrowings® 137.52 7.877.25 - - 8.014.77
Long term borrowings®* - - 7,052.98 511116 12,164.15
Trade payables 72,92 024.84 - - 997.76

210.44 8,802.09 7,052.98 5,111.16 21,176.68

* Excluding liability component of OCCRPS
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West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equily capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of
the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value and to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a “going concern”,

The Company has not distributed any dividend to its shareholders. The Company monitors gearing ratio i.e. total debt in propartion to its overall financing structure, Le. equity and debt, Total debt
includes borrowing which loang term, short term borrowings and current borrowings . The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes n economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

(T in Lakhs)
) As at As at

Particulrs 31 st March, 2023 31 st March, 2022
Equity (i) 9,422.66 8,072.52
Borrowings 17,083.59 20,178.93
Less: Cash and cash equivalents -619.69 -179.17
Total Debt (i) 16,463.90 19,999.76
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (i) 1.75 248
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 315t March, 2023 and 315t March, 2022,
Disclosure under the Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 to the extent the Company has received intimation from parties under the Act.
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

ki (T in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)

(1) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid

to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to Micro and small enterprises

Interest due on above but not claimed by the parties

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the

(11))The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

(iv)The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

(v)The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been indentified on the basis of information collected by Management This has been relied upon by

Auditors,

The Company is not required to spent any amount in terms of provisions of section 135 of the Companies, Act 2013 on Corporate Social Responsibility.

The Company 15 not declared as wilful defaulter by ant bank or financial institution or other lenders

There are no transactions with the Struck off Companies under Section 248 or 560 of the Companies, Act 2013,

No proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current period.

Pursuant to the amendments to Schedule IT1 vide MCA circular dated March 24, 2021, the following ratios are presented;

Reason for more than 25%

Particulars Numerator Denominator Current year Previous Year Variance%s
Varignce
Current ratio(in times) Total current assets Total current Habilitics 1.44 1.53 6% -
Due 1o repayment of debt and
Debt equity ratio(in times) Total Debt Share holder’s Equity 1.81 2550 27% increase it shareholders funds on
account of profits in current year
. On account of increased profit
(Net profit+ ;mm"'gr“m' before interest and depreciation in
Debt service coverage ratio{in times) depreciation+interest J P! Aenguems 0.88 0.20 347% current year,
& short term loan
payable during the year
On account of increase in profits
s i Average share holder's in current yeor due 10 isati
Return on equity ratio (in %) Profit afler tax Equity 15.6% -126% -204% of mall operations and Aurangabad
transaction
Dwue to increase in Revenwe from
operations in current year due to
Inventory turnover ratio(In times) Total operating sales Avernge Inventory 0.34 .08 295% regularisation of nall operations
and Aurangabad transaction
——— [ncrease in rutio is on account of
Trade receivables turnover ratio{ in times) Tatal operating sales "e_‘lg:k uats 421 1.05 299% inicrease in revenue from operatians
feeetial in current vear,
Due to increase in credit purchase
Trade payables turnover ratio{in times) Total purchases Average accounts payahle 6.00 4.01 0% of goods and services in current
vear
Increase in ratio is on account of
Net capital turnover ratio( in times) Total operating sales working Capital 0.96 0.21 347% increase in revenue from operations |
in current year,
On account of increase in Revenue |
from operations in current year due
L . isai I i
Net profit ratio(in %) Profit afier tax Total operating salcs 13.72% -47,36% -129% » E‘Tﬂ:::g:m;ms
e Prafit before tax and : D to increase in EBIT and
| | , -0 - Y
Return on capital employed ratio (in %) Atas i Capital Emplayed 9.56% 0.97% 1082% cidiictian fn debt
Return on investment ratio{in %) * R8 i from Investment o o (i1
invested funds




West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Previous Year Comparatives
The Company has regrouped, reclassified and restated previous year figures to conform to this year's presentation.

The Scheme of Amalg ion {"Scheme") for lg ion of the Company into its holding Company viz West pioneer properties (India) Private Limited with effect from the Appointed Date
(October 1, 2021) has been Approved by the Regional Director, Western Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide order dated December 19, 2022. However, the above results are being presented
on a standalone basis without giving effect to the said Scheme, pending the Scheme becoming effective by way of filing of the order with the Registrar of Companies (‘RaC’).

As per our report of even date
For Nilay D. Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registragjon No.: 130392W

/
- ,,O_q,
Yz Al
ilay D.Shah . Nitin Mhatre Sunil Trivedi
Proprietor ) Director Director
Membership No.: 130471 F2 | DIN No.08294405 DIN No. 00387797
[ %y
GrossorgRyTeey. A O
Glpurang Agrawal Anup Kumar Lath Radha Gohil
CEO CFO Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 29th May 2023 Date : 29th May 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March, 2023, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the -Financial
Statements.

Other Matters:

4. The Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme") for amalgamation of the Company into its holding
Company viz West pioneer properties (India) Private Limited from the Appointed Date of 1st
October 2021, through fast track merger, pursuant to Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rules 25 of the Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,
2016 has been approved by the Regional Director, Western Region, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs vide their order dated 19 December 2022.However the effect of the said Amalgamation
will be accounted once it's become effective as per scheme of Amalgamation



Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

5;

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our Auditor's Report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit or loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the IND AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

9.

10.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level or assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

* The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one



11.

12.

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Change in Equity and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the IND AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as at 31°* March 2023
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;



£ we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the

Company as on 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements

of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report as per Annexure B expressed

an unmodified opinion;

g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amount which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the Company.

UDIN: 23116667BGVULX8314
for RAVI A. SHAH & ASSOCIATES

Ravi A. S

hartered Accountants
irm Registration No.125079W

, Proprietor

embership No. 116667
umbai, May 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF
WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED, ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of

our report of even date):

i) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets, hence reporting under clause 3(i)(a) to 3(1)(d) are not applicable and
not commented upon.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
does not have inventory, hence reporting under clause 3(ii) are not applicable and not
commented upon.

iii) a. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, the Company has during the year granted unsecured loan to its
holding company, being party covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), amounting to Rs. 3.62 crores (amount outstanding of the
said loan at the end of the year is Rs. 63.13 crores)

b. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit

procedures conducted by us, the terms and conditions of the said loan are not prejudicial to

the interest of the company

c. As per the stipulated terms of the loan, no repayment was due on or before March 31,

2023, and accordingly we donot express any opinion on the regularity of repayment.

Subclause (d), (e) and (f) are not applicable and not commented upon.

iv) In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of
the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections
73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

Vi) The requirements of maintaining cost accounts and records as prescribed by the Central
Government under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the

Company.
% vii) (a). According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory and
o other dues the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues and other

dues with the appropriate authorities during the year.



viii)

x)

xi)

Xii)

Xiii)

Xiv)

XV)

XVi)

xvii)

xviii)

‘gz/ Xix)

(b). According to the information and explanations given to us clauses vii (b) of the
Companies (Auditors ‘Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained
any borrowings from any bank, financial institutions, or by way of debentures and hence
reporting under clause 3(ix) are not applicable and not commented upon.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) As represented by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the company during the year.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii)

of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc., as required by the applicable IND AS.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal
audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of section
138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Considering our comments in clause xiv (a) above, clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not
applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us and records produced before us, the
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi) (b), (c) and (d) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence



supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant
to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

UDIN: 23116667BGVULX8314

for RAVI A. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
ered Accountants

irm Registration No.125079W

. 7 Proprietor
embership No. 116667
umbai, May 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF
WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company as of that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR
and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate IFCOoFR were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an
understanding of IFCOFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCOFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's IFCoFR includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7 Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject
to the risk that IFCOFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2023 based on the internal control over

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

UDIN: 23116667BGVULX8314

for RAVI A. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
artered Accountants
irm Registration No.125079W

Havi A , Proprietor
lembership No. 116667
umbai, May 29, 2023



Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2023

As at As at
Particulars Notes 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(X in Lakhs)  in Lakhs)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipments 4 - -
(b) Capital work-in-progress - -
(c) Financials assets

(i) Investments 5 - -
(d) Other Non current assets - -
Current assets
(a) Financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 6 0.46 232.40
(ii) Loans 7 6,312.79 5,698.96
(iii) Other financial assets 8 219.14 174.73
(b) Other current assets 9 - 35.94
TOTAL ASSETS 6,532.39 6,142.03
EQUITY AND LIABLITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 10 652.77 652.77
(b) Other equity 11 5,796.07 5,488.45
Liablities
Current liabilities
(a) Other current liablities 12 1.15 0.81
(b) Current tax liabilities (net) 13 82.40 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABLITIES 6,532.39 6,142.03
As per my report of even date
For Ravi A Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 125079W

}{L\/\ 'v——-—"Qv-
i Gaurang Agrawal Sunil Kantilal Trivedi

Director Director
fembership No.: 116667 DIN No.00021665 DIN No.00387797
Radha Gohil

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2023 Date : May 29, 2023




Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Particulars Notes For the Period Ended |For the Year Ended 31st
31st March, 2023 March, 2022
(X in Lakhs) ( in Lakhs)

Income
Other income 14 424.38 382.84
Total income (I) 424.38 382.84
Expenses
Other expenses 15 4.61 722
Finance costs - -
Total expenses (1I) 4.61 7.22
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 419.77 375.62
Exceptional items - -
Profit/(loss) before tax 419.77 375.62
Tax expenses
(1)Current tax 112.15 9535
(2)Deferred tax - -
Profit / (Loss) for the year after tax 307.62 280.27
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to - -
profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or = -
loss
Total - -
Total comprehensive income for the year after tax 307.62 280.27
Earnings per Equity Share

Basic earnings / (loss) per Equity Share 4.71 4.29

Diluted earnings / (loss) per Equity Share 4.71 4.29

Nominal value per Equity Share 10 10

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per my report of even date

For Ravi A Shah & Associates

ered Accountants

irm Registration No.: 125079W

0 prieto'f
embership No.: 116667

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2023

Grouscuphgraned "

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

Galirang Agrawal
Director
DIN No.00021665

fos

Radha Gohil
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2023

ol

Sunil Kantilal Trivedi
Director
DIN No.00387797




Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2023
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 419.77 375.62
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Loss on sale of Property,Plant and Equipment - 323
Sundry balances write back (0.53) -
Interest expense - -
Interest (income) (421.65) (382.81)
Interest received on income tax refund (2.20) (0.02)
Net Cash Flow (used in)/from Operating Activities (4.61) (3.98)
Movements in working capital :
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets (349.83) (104.07)
(Decrease/Increase in other non financial liabilities 83.27 (819.19)
Cash (used in) / generated from operations (271.17) 927.24)
Income taxes paid (76.21) (95.11)
Net cash flow (used in) generated from operating activities (347.38) (1,022.35)
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of leasehold land and property, plant and equipments - 1,056.21
Unsecured loan given (362.00) (1,432.50)
Unsecured loan received 98.00 765.00
Interest received 377.24 297.27
Interest received on Income Tax refund 2.20 0.02
Net cash flow used in investing activities 115.44 686.00
Financing Activities
Unsecured loan repaid - -
Interest paid - -
Net cash flows from financing activities - -
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (231.94) (336.35)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 232.40 568.75
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.46 232.40
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand -
Balances with banks:
— In current accounts 0.46 109.40
Deposits with bank - 123.00
Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement 0.46 232.40
Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financing Activities
. As at Non cash changes A
Particulars 31st March 2022 | C2shFlow e A
Long term borrowings (including current maturities of long term Debt) - - - -
Particulars st ni\sriﬁ 2021 Cash Flow Non cash changes 31st N?:::; 2022
Long term borrowings (including current maturities of long term Debt) - - - -
As per my report of even date
F avi A Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartexed Accountants Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
ICAI EArm Registration No.: 125079W
Gmggj?&@# |
/ (\N-QA.
Gaurang Agrawal gl(lzr);,i\(;(antilal Trivedi
3 Director Director
Membership No.: 116667 DIN No.00021665 DIN No.00387797
@A- et
Radha Gohil
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : May 29, 2023 Date : May 29, 2023




Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

Statement of changes In Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(A) Equity share capital

Particulars As at —
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

No. of shares Amount (% in Lakhs) No. of shares Amount (R in Lakhs)
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued. subscribed and fully paid up
Opening 65,27,666 652.77 65,27,666 652.77
Add: Tssued during the year - - - -
Less: Bought back during the year - - - -
Closing 65,27,666 652.77 65,27,666 652.77

(B) Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Securities Premium

Total

Particulars Retained earnings
Account
(% in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 6,466.18 (1,258.00) 5,208.18
Additions / (Deductions) for the year - 280.27 280.27
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 280.27 280.27
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 6,466.18 (977.73) 5,488.45
Reserves and surplus
iti i Total
Particulars Securities Fremium Retained earnings o
Account
(X in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs) (R in Lakhs)
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 6,466.18 (977.73) 5,488.45
Additions / (Deductions) for the year - 307.62 307.62
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 307.62 307.62
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 6,466.18 (670.11) 5,796.07

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per my report of even date

For Ravi A Shah & Associates
astered Accountants

Jirm Registration No.: 125079W

tropfietor
fembership No.: 116667

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2023

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

@‘M%mw#
aurang Agrawal

Director
DIN No.00021665

pe

Radha Gohil
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2023

Sunil Kantilal Trivedi
Director

DIN No.00387797
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Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Corporate Information

Westficld Entertainment Private Limited is involved in development. construction and management of mixed use property in India. It is 100% subsidiary of West Pioncer Propertics (India) Private Limited.
! 8 property ) P

Significant accounting policies
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company arc as under:

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notificd under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015 as amended from time to time.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in usc.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of cach reporting period, as explained in the accounting policics below.

Current/non-current classification

Assets and liabilitics arc classified as Current and Non Current as per the Company's normal operating cycle . Based on the nature of activity carried out by the Company and the period between the procurement and realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purposc of Current/Non Current classification of asscts and liabilitics.

Use of Estimates

Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asscts and liabilitics and disclosure of contingent liabilitics at the date
of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions. actual results could differ from these
cstimates.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property. Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the cost of acquisition and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of tangible assets, which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended usc are also included to the extent they relate to the period
till such assets are ready to be put to usc.

Value of leaschold land is amortised over the respective residual lease period.

Subsequent measurement
Subscquent costs arc included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a scparate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

De recognition:

PPE arc derecognised cither when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no futurc cconomic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of de-recognition.

Property. plant and cquipment held for sale is valued at lower of their carrying amounts and net realizable valucs. Any write-down is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation is provided using the straight linc method as preseribed under Schedule IT of the Act based on useful life of an assct as specified therein and in casc the Schedule 11 provisions do not fairly reflect such useful life, on
the basis of technical evaluation made by the management

Building 30 years

Leaschold Tand are amortised on the basis of duration and other terms of leasc.

Depreciation method. useful life and residual value are reviewed periodically.

The Company depreciates assets costing less than ¥ 5,000 over their useful lives.

The carrying amount of PPE is reviewed periodically for impairment based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in usc.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment losscs, if any. Cost compriscs of expenditures incurred in respeet of capital projects under development and includes any attributable / allocable cost and other incidental
expenscs. Revenues earned, il any, from such capital project before capitalisation arc adjusted against the capital work in progress.

Leases

Leases where the lessor cffectively retains substantially all the risks and bencfits of ownership of the leased assct, are classificd as operating leascs.

Amortisation of lcase cost are recognised as Capital work in progress on straight line basis over the leasc term.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists certainity of its recovery.

Interest

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established. which is generally when sharcholders approve the dividend.

Impairment of Assets

At cach balance sheet date, management reviews the carrying amounts of asscts to determine whether there is any indication that the assets were impaired. If any such indication exists, recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-gencrating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in usc. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual assct, unless the assct does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an assct or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In asscssing value in use. the estimated future cash flows arc discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair valuc less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted market prices or other available fair value indicators.

Income Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred taxes, Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the lax authoritics in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income tax reflects the
impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of carlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws cnacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.




2.10

(a)

(b)

3.1

Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
At cach balance sheet date the Company re-asscsses unrccognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. in which case, the current and deferred tax arc also recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity respectively.
Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing the after tax net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for event like bonus issue. bonus clement in a rights issue to existing sharcholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purposc of calculating diluted carnings per share. the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period arc adjusted for the
cffects, of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can
be made. Provisions arc not discounted to their present value and arc determined based on best estimates required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at cach balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of threc months or less which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to scttle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Financial instruments

Financial Assets

Financial asscts arc recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.On initial recognition, a financial assct is recognised at fair value, in casc of Financial assets which arc
recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases. the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial assct.

Financial assets arc subscquently classified and measured at amortised cost. fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), and fair valuc through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial assets arc not reclassificd
subscquent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

All investments in equity instruments classificd under financial asscts arc initially measured at fair value, the Company may. on initial recognition, irrevocably clect to measure the same cither at FVOCI or FVTPL. The
Company makes clection to measure the same at FVOCT basis. Fair value changes excluding dividends.on equity instruments measured at FVTPL are recognized in- Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on investments
in equity instruments arc recognised as “other income” in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company derccognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials asscts in FVTPL category. For financial asscts other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company
recognises 12-month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial asscts if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit
losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Company’s trade reccivables do not contain significant financing component and
loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.c. expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilitics arc recognised when the Company becomes a party to contractual provisions of an instrument. Financial liabilitics arc initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition. they are classified as
fair value through profit and loss. In case of trade payables. they are initially recognised at fair value and subscquently. these liabilitics arc held at amortised cost. using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities arc subscquently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilitics carried at fair value through profit or loss are measurced at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

A [inancial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged. cancelled or expires.

Financial assets and liabilitics arc offsct and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to scttle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforccable in the normal course of business and in the event of default. insolvency or bankruptey of
the Company or the counterparty.

Significant accounting jud: esti and

d

The preparation of financial st requires to make j cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenucs. expenses, asscts and liabilitics, and the accompanying disclosures.
including the disclosurc of contingent liabilitics. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asscts or liabilities affected in futurc years.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year end date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company bascd its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

As described in the significant accounting policics, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property. plant and cquipment at the end of cach reporting period. These reassessments may result in change in the
depreciation /amortisation expense in future periods.

(b) Classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current
The management classifies the assets and liabilitics into current and non-current categorics based on the operating cycle of the business.
(c) Impairment of assets

In assessing impairment, management cstimates the recoverable amounts of cach asset or CGU (in case of non-financial assets) based on expected futurc cash flows and uscs an estimated interest rate to discount them
Estimation relates to assumptions about future cash flows and the determination of a suitable discount rate.In determining fair valuc less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.
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4. Property, plant and equipments

Z in Lakhs)
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation/Impairment Net Block
As on 1st Additions Deletions As on 31st March As on Ist Charge for Deletion As on 31st As on 31st March As on 31st
April 2022 2023 April 2022 the Year March 2023 2023 March 2022
Leasehold land - - - - - - - - - -
Building - - - - - - - - - -
Compound wall - - - - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - - - - -
R in Lakhs)
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation/Impairment Net Block
As on Ist Additions Deletions As on 31st March As on 1st Charge for Deletion As on 31st As on 31st March As on 31st
April 2021 2022 April 2021 the Year March 2022 2022 March 2021
Leasehold land 984.38 - 984.38 - 34.12 - 34.12 - - 950.26
Building 28.38 - 28.38 - 0.90 - 0.90 - - 27.48
Compound wall 10.39 - 10.39 - 10.39 - 10.39 - = &
Total 1,023.15 - 1,023.15 - 45.41 - 45.41 - - 977.74

=
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Investments (Non Current Financial Assets)

Unqouted
Investment in Equity Share

Investment in Hawcoplast Investments and Trading Limited - 1 equity share of % 10 fully paid up (31st March 2022 :

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances with banks:

— On current accounts
Deposits with bank

Loans (Current Financial Assets)

Loan reccivable considered goods-Unsccured
Loans to related party

)]

As at
31st March, 2023

(% in Lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2022

(% in Lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2023
(Z in Lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2022
(% in Lakhs)

0.46 109.40
- 123.00
0.46 232.40

As at
31st March, 2023

(% in Lakhs)

6.312.79

Asat
31st March, 2022

(% in Lakhs)

3.698.96

6,312.79

5,698.96

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

Details of loans given by the Company are as follows:

Name

Relationship

As at
31st March, 2023

West Pioncer Propertics (India) Private Limited

Holding Company

6,312.79

The above loan was given to the holding company for its business activitics

Other Financial Assets

Amounts receivable towards sale of leaschold land and property, plant and equipments

Interest receivable

Other Current Assets

Advance tax paid (net of provision of ¥ NIL . P.Y.Z 95.35 Lakh)

Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital
93.88.380 Equity Shares of % 10 cach
(31st March, 2022 : 93.88.580)

3.36.862 Preference Shares of 2 100 cach
(31st March, 2022 : 3.36,862)

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital Fully paid up
65,27,666 Equity Shares of 10 cach
(31st March, 2022 : 65,27.666)

Total

(ii) There are no guarantees issued or investments made by the Company in accordance with section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder.

As at
31st March, 2023

(Z in Lakhs)

219.14

As at
31st March, 2022

(% in Lakhs)

174.73

219.14

174.73

As at
31st March, 2023

(% in Lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2022

(% in Lakhs)

35.94
= 35.94
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(% in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
938.86 938.86
336.86 336.86
1,275.72 1,275.72
652.77 652.77
652.77 652.77
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Reconciliation of shares outstanding at beginning and at end of the year

Equity shares

As at 31st March, 2022
(Xin Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2023
Nos (X in Lakhs) Nos

At beginning of the year
Issucd during the year
Outstanding at end of the year

63.27.666 632.77

63.27.666

65.27.666 652.77

65.27,666

Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only onc class of equity shares having par valuc of % 10 per share. Each holder of cquity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend
pany ) quity 3 p: I quity P pany pay I

proposed by the Board of Dircctors is subjeet to approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity sharcholders was "Nil (31 March 2022: " Nil)

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of cquity shares held by the sharcholders.

Shares held by holding company
shares held by its holding company arc as

West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited, holding company

65.27.666 Equity Shares of .10 cach

(31st March, 2022 : 65.27.666)

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)

632.77

652.77

The holding company has 100% sharcholding with 150 shares held jointly with Mr. Banwarilal Jatia, Mr. Sundeep Kumar, Ms. Minal Kardile, Mr. Gaurang Agarwal, Mr. Anil Gupta and Mr. O.P.Adukia as nominee on behalf

of the Company.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of shareholder

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid
West Pioncer Propertics (India) Private Limited

As at 31st March, 2023
Nos % holding in the class

65.27.666 100.00%

As at 31st March, 2022

Nos

65.27.666

% holding in the class

100.00%

As per records of the Company., including its register of sharcholders/ members and the declarations received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership

of the shares

Shareholding of Promoters

As at
31st March, 2023

As at

31st March, 2022

% Change during the

% of total year
Promoter's Name No. of Shares | % of total shares | No. of Shares 5
shares
West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited* 65,27,666 100% 65.27.666 100% 0%

*The Promoters holding is inclusive of 150 shares held jointly with Mr.

Company.

Other Equity

Banwarilal Jatia, Mr. Sundecp Kumar, Ms. Minal Kardile, Mr. Gaurang Agarwal, Mr. Anil Gupta and Mr. O.P.Adukia as nomince on behalf of the

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(X in Lakhs) (Xin Lakhs)

Securities Premium Account
Balance as per last financial statements 6.466.18 6.466.18
Closing Balance 6,466.18 6.466.18
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per last financial statements (977.73) (1.258.00)
Profit for the ycar 307.62 280.27
Impact on account of change in fair value of financial instruments - -
Net Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss (670.11) (977.73)
Total Reserves and Surplus 5.796.07 5,488.45
Other Current Liabilities

As at As at

31st March, 2023
(% in Lakhs)

31st March, 2022
(% in Lakhs)

TDS payable 0.05 0.02
Expenses payable 1.10 0.79
1.15 0.81

Current Tax Liabilites (net)

Provision for income tax (net of taxes paid of Rs.23.60 lacs. previous year Rs. Nil)

Income

Other Income

As at
31st March, 2023
(% in Lakhs)
82.40

As at
31st March, 2022
(Z in Lakhs)

82.40

As at
31st March, 2023

(% in Lakhs)

Year Ended
31st March, 202

(Zin Lakhs)

&Y

Interest from bank fixed deposits 7.04 18.25
Interest from others 416.81 364.59
Sundry balances written back 0.53

424.38 382.84
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Other Expenses

Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional fees
Audit fees

Sccurity expenscs
Miscellancous expenses
Loss on sale of Fixed asscts

Earnings Per Share

Profit after tax
Weighted average number of shares (nos)
Basic & diluted carnings per share ()

Segmental Reporting

The Company is engaged in a single segment business of development, construction and management of mixed use property in India.

Related Party Disclosures
Names of Related Parties and Relationships:

Control :
Holding Company

Ultimate Holding Company

Key Management Personncl

Transactions with related parties

West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited

Interest received on Joan

Loan given

Loan repayment received
Amount duc from related party

Capital Commitments ¥ Nil (Previous Year ¥ Nil)
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities:

a) Guarantees

The Company has not provided any guaranices.

As at
31st March, 2023
(% in Lakhs)

Year Ended
31st March, 2022
(X in Lakhs)

- 0.42
3.97 1.66
0.60 0.69

- 0.14
0.04 1.08

- 3.23
4.61 7.22

(% in Lakhs)
31st March, 2023
307.62
65.27.666
4.71

West Pioncer Propertics (India) Private Limited

Winmore Leasing and Holdings Limited

Mr. Gaurang Agarwal - Dircctor
Mr. Sunil Kantilal Trivedi - Dircctor
Radha Gohil - Company Sccretary

31st March, 2023
(% in Lakhs)

414.601
362.00
98.00
6,531.93

Expenditure in foreign currency Nil {Previous Year Nil)

Disclosure under the Micro.Smali and Medium Enterprises D Act 2006 to the extent intimation from parties has been received

(% in Lakhs)
31st March, 2022
280.27
65,27.666
4.29

31st March, 2022
(% in Lakhs)

364.57
1,432.50
853.72
5.873.17

Particulars

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

(X in Lakhs)

(% in Lakhs)

(i) The principal amount and the interest duc thercon remaining unpaid

Principal amount duc to Micro and small enterprises

Interest duc on above but not claimed by the partics

(i1) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to thesupplicr beyond the
appointed day during cach accounting year

(iii) The amount of interest duc and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

(iv)The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting ycar.

(v)The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable cven in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest ducs as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under seetion 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Dues to Micro and small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been indentified on the basis of information collected by M This has been rclied upon by Auditor:

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value al cach balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption

that the transaction to sell the assct or transfer the liability takes place cither:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) In the abscence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the assct or liability accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the usc of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of

unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilitics for which fair valuc is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows. based on the lowest level input that 1s significant to the (air

value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical asscts or liabilitics

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value arc observable. cither dircetly or indirectly

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by category are as follows:
(Z in Lakhs)

Carring Value

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Farticulacs Fair value
At cost through profit Fair value Amortised At cost Fair value through Fair value through OCI Amortised cost
or loss through OCI cost profit or loss
(
Financial Assets
Cash & cash cquivalent - - - 0.46 - - - 232,40
Loans = - - 6.312.79 - - - 5.698.96
Investment - - - - - - -
Other finanical asscts = = = 219.14 - - - 174.73
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - - - -

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and exceute its business strategics. The Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the Managing Board.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future carnings, fair values or futurc cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the
interest rates, cquity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments.

Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits and loans and borrowings.

Market Risk- Interest rate risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as forcign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices — will affeet the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to mect its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally from the Company’s statutory deposits with
regulatory agencies and also arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions. The maximum cxposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit
risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company asscsses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their (inancial position. past experience and other factors.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rated banks and institutions and trying to retain sufficient balances in bank accounts required to meet a month’s operational costs

The management reviews the bank accounts on regular basis and fund drawdowns arc planned to ensure that there is minimal surplus cash in bank accounts. The Company does not foresee any credit risks on deposits with
regulatory authorities.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 is the carrying amounts as mentioned in Note 6.7.8 and 9.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defincd as the risk that the Company will not be able to scttle or meet its obligations on time, or at a reasonable price. The processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management.
Management monitors the Company s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management. capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other cquity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management is to maximize the sharcholder value and to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a “going concern”™,

The Company has not distributed any dividend to its sharcholders. The Company monitors gearing ratio i.c. total debt in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.c. cquity and debt. The Company manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in cconomic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying asscts.
(% in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulrs 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Equity (i) 6.448.84 6.141.22
Borrowings e =
Less: Cash and cash cquivalents (0.46) (232.40)
Total Debt (ii) (0.46) (232.40)
Adjusted net debt to adjusted Equity ratio (0.00) (0.04)

No changes were made in the objectives. policics or processes for managing capital during the years ended 3 1st March, 2023 and 3 1st March, 2022 .

The Company is not required to spent any amount in terms of provisions of section 135 of the Companies, Act 2013 on Corporate Social Responsibility.

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by ant bank or financial institution or other lenders.

There arc no transactions with the Struck off Companics under Section 248 or 560 of the Companics, Act 2013.
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31 No procecdings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988.

s
e

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current period.

33 Pursuant to the amendments to Schedule I11 vide MCA circular dated March 24, 2021, the following ratios are presented:

Particulars Numerator Denominator Current Previous % variance Reason for more than 25% variance

year Year
< R Decrease in ratio is due to increase in
times Current assets Current liabilitics i
Currentratiolinitimes) 78.19 7,582.75 -99% current liability.
Debt equity ratio(in times) Total Debt Share holder's Equity NA NA
. . — (Net profit+ Total amount of interest & principal
tpee;)ser\uce coverage atio(in depreciationtinterest ) |of longterm & short term loan payable NA NA
m during the year
: o o < . ) 11
Return on equity ratio (in %) Profit after tax Average sharc holder's Equity 4.89% 4.67% 5%
" . Cost of goods sold or

Inventory turnover ratio(In times) DS"llcs Average inventory NA NA

t'.l'radtz receivables turnoveriratio(.in Total operating sales Average accounts reccivables NA NA

imes

Trade payables turnover ratio(in Total purchascs Average Trade payable NA NA

times)

Net capital turnover ratio( in times) Total operating sales Working Capital NA NA

Net profit ratio(in %) Profit after tax Total operating sales NA NA

i i Profit before tax a .
Return on capftal employed ratio rofit before tax and Total share holder's Equity
(in %) Interest 6.51% 6.12% 6%
Income gencrated from
Return on investment ratio(in %) G2 Investment
invested funds , B

34 Previous Year Comparatives

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified where necessary to conform to this year’s presentation.
35 The Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme") for amalgamation of the Company into its holding Company viz West pioncer propertics (India) Private Limited from the Appointed Date of Ist October 2021, through fast track

merger, pursuant to Scction 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 25 of the Companics (Compromise. Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules. 2016 has been approved by the Regional Dircetor, Western Region.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide their order dated 19 December 2022.However  the effect of the said Amalgamation will be accounted once it’s become effective as per scheme of Amalgamation.

As per my report of even date

A Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
d Accountants Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

'm Registration No.: 123079W

Sunil Kantilal Trivedi
Dircctor Dircctor
DIN No.00021665 DIN No.00387797

fTembership No.: 116667

Radha Gohil
Company Scerctary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : May 29, 2023 Date : May 29. 2023




